
 

 Mailing – P.O. Box 45073, Seattle, WA 98145 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Time: 11:30 – 1:00 

Date: February 18, 2020 

UW Tower 

1. Welcome and Introductions   Sally      

      

2. Public Comment    All      

 

3. Approval of January 2019 Meeting Minutes Sally    Vote  

 

4. Committee Reports   

a. Finance     Rob/Phil/Mark   Q/A  

b. Governance    Louise/Sally   Vote    

c. Clean and Safe     Don/Marcus   Q/A  

d. Communications and Events  Andrew/Mark    Q/A  

e. Economic Development   Mark/Daniel   Q/A  

f. Urban Vitality    Stephen/Katy/Mark  Q/A  

 

5.  Ordinance Renewal Update   Sally    Discuss  

 

6. Adjourn           

            

Upcoming Events 

BIA Walk     February 21  9:00 a.m. 

Urban Vitality Committee  February 25  4:00 p.m. 

U District Business Network  March 5 (tentative) 6:00 p.m. 

Executive Committee   March 10  1:00 p.m. 

Clean and Safe Committee  March 12  Noon 

Finance Committee   March 13  9:30 a.m.    

UDP Board    March 17  11:30 

 

  

http://www.udistrictpartnership.org/


 
 

www.udistrictpartnership.org 
 

   
 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 
Time:  11:30 AM – 1:00 PM 

Date:  January 21, 2020 
Location:  Masonic Hall 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
UDP Board Members 
Sally Clark, Co-Chair Andrew McMasters (phone) Jeanette Henderson 
Eric Lawson Louise Little Don Schulze  
Barbara Quinn Rob Lubin, Treasurer Lois Ko, Secretary 
Stephen Antupit Anson Lin Pat Simpson 
Dawn Perry 
 
Excused  
Alfred Shiga Anson Lin Miles Richardson, Co-Chair 
  
 
UDP Staff 
Mark Crawford, IED Marcus Johnson, C&S Kay Ricchiuto, Public Realm 
Jen Astion, Comm. Phil Lloyd, Finance Daniel Lokic, Economic Dev. 
 
Guests 
Cory Crocker Rudi Risler Doug Campbell 
Kjris Lund Diane Angel Cara Vallier 
Ray Holmdahl (BDO) Matt Smith (BDO)  
 
Welcome and Introductions 

Sally called the meeting to order at 11:35 pm. She thanked Dawn for hosting the UDP holiday 
party.  

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

Approval of October 2019 Meeting Minutes 

Motion: Don moved to approve the July 2019 meeting minutes as amended with the 
insertion of “street” which was omitted in the Urban Vitality report.  
Louise seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved with two abstentions (Lois and Andrew) 

Committee Reports 

Finance 
Rob presented the draft December 2019 financial report.  He commended staff for their 
reports and the clarity and transparency of the reports. He noted the insurance settlement for 
the fire, the payment of the Sound Transit payment for Up Your Ave, and the $21,000 initial 
revenue error reported earlier. Sally reiterated her appreciation for the Tracker. Mark 
reiterated that we are at the half way point, basically on track, up to full staff except the Office 
Manager which has proven difficult to fill. By the end of the year, we are adjusting StreetFair 



   Page 2 

budget for a modest improvement, we have hired assistance for renewal consulting for the 
council process, anticipating the launch for the new Executive Director and paying part of the 
search this year, and launching the Cherry Blossom festival. BOIA should be ahead by about 
$16,000 and UDP ahead by about $30,000 

 

Motion: The Finance Committee moved to approve the September 2019 financials.  
Louise seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved with one abstention (Jeanette) 

 

 Clean and Safe 

 

Fall flower baskets to be removed.  

Leaf cleaning went as planned. Marcus is waiting for final total tonnage reports.  

Holiday lights will be taken down in the near future.  

Pressure washing still scheduled for spring.  

Transition to Aries Security going well. Call volume from businesses for assistance continues 
to grow. Doug Campbell asked about the uniform – he felt it is too “military”. The Board felt 
that Doug was confusing the uniform of the security in the alley for the Ambassadors. The 
alley security is a different contract with the church and not under our management. Marcus 
will bring the Ambassadors by Bulldog so Doug can be introduced to those staff members.  

Extra ambassador patrols and cleaning to be scheduled for major spring events.  

Our contractor was able to shovel and salt the cleaning areas and keep it clear during the 
recent storm.  

Marcus thanked Rudi and Linda for their work in embroidering the new vests for our staff. 
Their help is deeply appreciated.  

Don commented on the efficacy and teamwork that has developed between the 
Ambassadors, David Delgado from REACH and our Seattle Police and our UW patrol 
officers.  

Sally commented on the interaction report for REACH and the impact it is having on the 
district. She noted the cooperative funding of the City, BIA, UDP and Rotary that made this 
program possible.  
  

Events & Marketing 

Jen Astion reported that work on the StreetFair has begun. We are looking for additional 
sponsors. Sound Transit has agreed to sponsor the mainstage. The poster contest has been 
announced. Board members are encouraged to notify their own networks about both the 
posters contest and sponsorship opportunities. Stephen suggested reaching out to some of 
the developers that are working in the district as potential sponsors.  

The updated website has gone live. There is still more work to be done on several sections.  

Sally noted the volume and positive open rate of both the newsletter and weekly update 
subscribers.  
  



   Page 3 

Economic Development 
  

Daniel Lokic introduced himself as the new Economic Development Manager. He identified 
his three major priorities for the immediate future.  

Business Network is a priority for his work. Adding breakfast meetings and round tables.  

Planning a business map to clarify the range of businesses and their locations/saturations 
district wide.  

We are launching the Cherry Blossom Festival this year to drive the viewers over to the retail 
section of the district. Jeanette asked about University involvement. Staff is working with UW 
staff. They are focusing on the logistics on campus like trash removal, bathroom access, and 
parking.  

The Economic Development Committee has created task forces to concentrate on the 
specific initiatives of business network/major events (like Cherry Blossom Festival) and Key 
Indicators.  

 

Urban Vitality 

 

Stephen introduced Katy Ricchiuto as the new Built Environment Community Relations 
Manager. He reviewed the Committee and task force structure. The Committee meets 
monthly on the fourth Tuesday of the month.  

She reported her priorities for the fiscal year:  

43rd redevelopment projects and station impacts – coordinating with SDOT to represent and 
inform businesses impacted. Possible furniture plan by the City needs outreach.  

Monitoring and informing the public about potential zoning proposals impacting University 
Way and surrounding area. She is working to gather information. She shared info about the 
potential proposal to create historical designations in the area. The UDP sent a letter to 
affected property owners informing them about the effort and their options for engagement.  

She is investigating launching a mural project. She is in the research phase at this time.  

Mark reported the application for the food truck on the corner of 43rd and University Way. 
Louise reported no notice given to business owners. She explained the food truck would 
make over one of the recently designated loading docks that were created to mitigate 43rd 
redevelopment. We do not know if the applications going forward. Louise encouraged the 
UDP to take a position on best policies for food trucks in a highly served area. We have a 
very robust brick and motor restaurant in the immediate area already that pay taxes and 
participate in the community. Dawn suggested that a food truck would be welcome in her less 
served part of the district. Staff did write letters to OED, SDOT, and Councilmember 
Pedersen’s office. We also canvassed local businesses to alert them and encourage them to 
provide comment to SDOT.  
  

 

 

 



   Page 4 

Ordinance Renewal 

  

Sally updated the Board on the renewal. Current BIA expires in May 2020.  Petitions are at 
63.89% and have been submitted to the City for verification. We continue to solicit additional 
property owner support.  Are meeting with OED, FAS, and other administrative offices to 
ensure that those departments are in agreement that we are ready to go forward. We have 
been working with BDS to manage the petition process. Sally introduced Kjris Lund, a local 
consultant experienced in City process to help with the Council process. Sally reminded the 
board that we will need them to go on calls to the Council, explaining their experiences with 
the BIA improvements and their support for the renewal. We need to be out of Council 
Committee of Economic Development by end of April to get May full council approval and 
mayoral sign off.  

Sally noted that the timing of the renewal requires quick action by all parties. We have some 
reserves to manage modest extensions of that time but that is a limited reserve.  

The renewal team continues to meet monthly and have an additional monthly call.  

 

 A Brief Recess 

Sally called for a 10 minutes recess to allow the auditor to arrive and set up their 
presentation. The Board was called back into order.  

 

Audit Presentation 

Ray Holmdahl and Matt Smith of BDO presented the audit findings. The audit reflected good 
internal controls and financial reporting and was deemed a “clean opinion”. The 
auditors do recommend that a more formalized process of recording the Executive 
Director review and approval of journal entries be put into place. The auditors noted 
that this audit did not include a comparison to the past twelve month period as there 
had been an 18 month audit previously given the change in fiscal years.  

 

Motion: Sally moved the acceptance of the fiscal year 2018-19 audit as presented.  

   Louise seconded the motion.  

   The motion was unanimously approved 

 

Adjournment 

Sally adjourned the meeting at 12:53 pm. 

NEXT BOARD MEETING: February 18, 2020 11:30am – 1:00pm, UW Tower Boardroom 









Variance Notes – DRAFT January 2020 Financial Reports 

UDP Board Meeting  2-18-20 

 

 

Balance Sheet 

Cash – More than same period last year because StreetFair funds are showing up earlier and $8,000 of 

Christie Park art project funds need to be transferred to Wells Fargo account. Transfer to occur in 

February. 

Accounts Receivable – normal. Now includes Sound Transit commitment for StreetFair Mainstage 

sponsorship.  

Undeposited Funds - $8,000 check for Christie Park that needs deposit.  

Accounts Payable – Normal 

Budget Report 

Staff – Continued savings primarily from Marketing Manager vacancy expected and built into reforecast 

for year. Also - Office Manager Position.  Benefits variance of $1,032 in total Staff savings due to billing 

timing – will be caught up in subsequent period.  

Legal Fees/Other - $3,500 to pay for Lund Consulting contract for renewal – expected and built into 

reforecast for year.  

Direct Program Expenses - $1,000 for initial Cherry Blossom Festival events – expected and built into 

reforecast for year.  

Budget Tracker 

Program Management – Renewal costs continue to impact. Built into reforecast.  

Economic Development – As reported last month, delay in hiring led to savings. Factored into reforecast.  

Marketing – As reported last month, vacancy created by staff departure continues to affect this area. 

Built into reforecast.  

Events and Activations – As reported last month, savings on events, particularly Up Your Ave have kept 

this lower than budgeted. Costs associated with Cherry Blossom Festival will offset.  

 

 

 

 



  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



  



  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



  
• 

• 

• 

 



  



  



  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Communication and Events Report 
February 2020 
Submitted by Mark Crawford 
 

Staff Change 
 
Jen Astion has decided to leave UDP to focus on other 
priorities at this time. We will miss Jen and we thank her 
for all of her terrific work – first as the Communications 
Assistant maintaining our social media and newsletters 
and more recently as the Interim Marketing and Events 
Manager. Jen did a great job picking up projects that 
needed completion when Chase left and I really 
appreciate all that she accomplished in such a short time.  We will post the open position soon and in 
the interim, I want to thank Marcus, Katy and Daniel for each stepping in to make sure we continue to 
fill our Communications and Events responsibilities. Katy will take over weekly and monthly 
newsletters. Daniel will maintain the website and manage social media. Marcus will be a resource to all 
of us on the intricacies of any event planning and needs. I will become the point person for the 
StreetFair.  
 

University District StreetFair 
The University District StreetFair will take place on May 16 and 17, 2020. We are wrapping up a poster 
contest with a prize of $1,000. The deadline for entries was February 15, 2020.  We received a 
fascinating array of entries. The next step is to identify a couple of most interesting possibilities, seek 
input on appeal and utility from a few other sources, perhaps ask the top candidate for a redraft in 
response to feedback and then a final announcement.  
 
We are in the process of finding StreetFair sponsors. The sponsorship levels are $20,000 for Presenting 
Sponsor, $10,000 for the Main Stage Sponsor, and $5,000 for the Supporting Sponsor. I am delighted to 
announce that Sound Transit has agreed to be the Mainstage Sponsor, Seattle Times will return as our 
Media Sponsor, ACC has agreed to be a Supporting Sponsor, and the YMCA is returning as the 
Sponsor/Producer of our Kids Zone. We continue to seek additional sponsors.  

 
U District Cherry Blossom Festival 
Economic Development Manager Daniel Lokic has convened a task force to plan the new U District 
Cherry Blossom Festival. Please see his report for al of the exciting news about how that is developing.  

 
Communications 
Newsletters – Because of the staff turnover, I have no yet compiled the recent statistics. We will do so soon.  



 

 

Economic Development 

Committee Meeting 

The Economic Development Committee did not meet between January 21 and February 14. 

Cherry Blossom Festival 

The Cherry Blossom Task Force met on January 22 and February 12 to provide 

guidance for the final festival poster. Consultant Keith Russel Design continues 

his work on the business brochure, map, wayfinding signage, and marketing 

materials.  

Daniel and Katy met with SDOT representatives on February 11 to discuss 

locations for “activating” the public realm during the Cherry Blossom Festival. 

Business owners will be allowed to “spill” into the public spaces in front of their 

storefront. A larger activity zone is tentatively planned for 43rd/University, 

outside of the light rail station. Current plans include a large tent, outdoor 

seating, activities, games, and music. 

Daniel met with the director the UW Cherry Blossom Run on January 29 to 

explore a collaborative effort. The Cherry Blossom Run will feature the U 

District Partnership booth at the finish line with maps, brochures, and 

marketing materials.  

The task force is continuing business outreach with 25 confirmed participants, 

and a goal of 30 businesses. Outreach efforts are slowly shifting to apartment 

buildings, hotels, and property owners to ensure they’re aware of the festival, 

and willing to distribute marketing materials to those who live or visit the U 

District. 

Business Recruitment 

In late 2019, the owners of the historic University Seafood and Poultry retired and closed their doors 

permanently. Daniel has been engaged and in conversation with potential replacements including a 

premium seafood market and restaurant. Daniel has a meeting scheduled with multiple stakeholders on 

February 21 to explore options and support mechanisms. Those in attendance will include: (Owners of a 

Premium Seafood Market/Restaurant); Jeanette E. (University Seafood and Poultry); Ashton A. (Seattle 

Chamber of Commerce); Jenefeness T. (WA Small Business Development); Phillip S. (Office of Economic 

Development).  

Relationship & Network Development 

Alongside this collaborative work, Daniel continues to engage with community partners, businesses, and 

key stakeholders to leverage the skills, knowledge, and resources within the U District. Daniel has 

established relationships with: 

• Ashton Allison - Seattle Chamber of Commerce 

• Jenefeness Tucker - Washington State University Small Business Development Center 

• Jimmy Addison – Rivalry Events 

• Seth Geiser and Emily Mannetti - Downtown Seattle Association 

• Rob Leslie, Claire Bowen-Pope, Rudd Schupp – Visit Seattle 



 

 

• Karen True – Alliance for Pioneer Square 

• Robert Mclaughlin – Owner of Earls on the Ave 

• Katherine and Daniel – Owners of the Kraken 

• Abel Pacheco – Sound Transit and former Councilmember 

2019-20 Workplan 

Daniel’s has recently refined his workplan to emphasize the need to support legacy, POC, and minority 

owned businesses. 

DATA 

1) Economic Data:  

Developing, monitoring, and analyzing data to measure the economic health of the U 

District and to provide valuable marketing tools for business recruitment. Data includes 

“number of years in business”, “new business inquiries received”, and “commercial/office 

leasing rates” to support business retention and expansion. 

2) Entrepreneurial Needs Survey:  

Collaborating with CoMotion and WeWork to discover the diverse needs of entrepreneurs, 

start-ups, and micro-enterprises. 

3) Community Needs Survey:   

Collecting critical information about the strengths and weaknesses of services, retail, and 

the built environment from individuals that live, work, and play in the U District. 

4) Database & Map of Business Mix:  

Developing a comprehensive database and map of U District businesses, highlighting their 

characteristics and relation to an ideal market saturation. Clearly communicating 

opportunities and threats to those who lack the resources and/or expertise to do so. 

5) Commercial Lease Tracking:  

Creating an on-going database of new development and existing spaces to assist in the 

relocation of businesses facing displacement.  

BUSINESS NETWORK 

1) Round Table Discussions:  

Facilitating informal discussions with industry specific agendas for targeted sectors 

(including legacy, POC, and women/minority owned businesses) to support business needs 

and to guide future workplans. 

2) SLACK Virtual Business Network:  

Creating a virtual business development group to assist in the distribution of valuable 

resources, with a commitment to training and supporting small businesses with limited 

capacity. 

3) Quarterly Meeting #1 & #2:  

Facilitating business network meetings to provide updates and resources about the “Slack 

Virtual Business Network”, “Round Table Discussions”, “Cherry Blossom Festival”, and to 

promote social networking and relationship building. 



 

 

MARKETING & BRANDING 

1) Restaurant District:  

Promoting food amenities (including legacy, POC, and women/minority owned businesses) 

and creating a cohesive brand to highlight the U District as a destination and experience. 

 

EVENTS 

1) Cherry Blossom Festival:  

Attracting residents, students, employees, and tourists that already attend the annual 

Cherry Blossoms at UW to spend time and money in U District’s unique and diverse business 

community. 

2) Art, Beer, and Wine Walk:  

Working collaboratively with organizational partners and businesses to create a social event 

that engages participants with the historical small business culture of art, food, and drinks. 

 



 

Urban Vitality  

February 2020 Update  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1) Urban Vitality Committee 

a) The Urban Vitality Committee had its first monthly meeting of the new year on January 

28. The committee heard updates from Katy Ricchiuto about development tracking, 5G 

installation, Christie Park, land use on University Way, the Metro Northlink restructure, 

and the NE 43rd Redevelopment Project. 

b) The committee discussed the potential for a 2020 mural project (more information in the 

public realm section of this report. 

c) The committee discussed public realm activation for the upcoming Cherry Blossom 

Festival, include the use of alley ways and NE 43rd Street. Katy Ricchiuto will be working 

with Daniel Lokic and the Cherry Blossom Festival task force to determine public spaces 

to be activated and what type of engagement we will include. 

d) The committee discussed how the UDP can build expertise and engage effectively on 

land use issues in the district. This could include the creation of a task force. 

e) The next Urban Vitality Committee meeting is Tuesday, Feb. 25. 

 

2) Development Tracking 

a) Design Review Board meetings: 

• Jan. 27, 2020: 1300 NE 45th Street – Early Design Guidance meeting for a 23-

story, 363-unit apartment building with retail. UDP made a public comment in 

support of the ground floor public realm and retail design, and requested the 

developer ensure a safe connection to the eastern alley. The project will appear 

before the board for a second time. 

• Jan. 27, 2020: 4131 Brooklyn Ave NE – Early Design Guidance meeting for a 24-

story, 260-unit apartment building with retail. UDP made a public comment in 

favor of a south-facing, mid-block public open space and mid-block connection. 

The developer favors a north facing open space, which could pose usage and 

safety issues because of lack of light. The project was asked to appear before 

the board another time before recommendation. 

• Feb. 10, 2020: 4525 9th Ave NE – Early Design Guidance meeting for a 32-story 

residential building with 331 apartments and several ground floor town homes. 

UDP spoke in favor of a south-facing public open space planned by the 

developer, and stressed that the developer should ensure that the open space is 

visually and practically accessible and welcoming for non-residents. The project 

will appear before the board for a final recommendation review. 



 

b) UDP website development tracking map: 

• The developer of Seattle in Progress website allows organizations to embed the 

Seattle in Progress map, with district boundaries, for free on websites (on the 

condition that the Seattle in Progress logos is retained on the map). You can 

view the Seattle in Progress site here. 

• They also have several levels of customization options for significant fees.  

• The next step is to work with the developer to embed map, and track usage 

before electing for any customization 

 

3) Transit and Mobility 

a) 43rd Street:  

• Monthly Coordination Meetings:  

(i) UDP continues to be present at the monthly SDOT project team 

coordination meetings to ensure the concerns and opinions of community 

stakeholders are represented. The final monthly meeting was in early 

February.  

(ii) The project will be at 100% design by the end of February, and 

construction will begin mid-year and last approximately 9 months. UDP 

reviewed and provided comment on the 90% design plans.  

(iii) UDP has requested continued coordination meetings with project leads 

as the project moves into construction planning. 

• NE 43rd Outreach:  

(i) UDP staff members Katy Ricchiuto and Daniel Lokic went door-to-door 

with SDOT on Monday, February 10 to speak with businesses about 

public realm enhancements that will happen as a result of the 43rd Street 

Improvement project.  

(ii) UDP had prepared business owners prior to the meetings with SDOT 

through email and in-person conversations.  

(iii) SDOT spoke with businesses about furniture zones, sidewalk café 

permits, bike racks, benches, and sidewalk art inlays. Many businesses 

voiced concern over the length of construction, as well as the loss of 

loading zones.  

(iv) While we cannot guarantee any specific outcomes for businesses, UDP 

will continue to work with SDOT to ensure that business owners’ 

concerns are heard.  

(v) SDOT indicated they would like to set up additional in-person meetings 

with businesses and the construction contractor once they are hired. 

https://www.seattleinprogress.com/


b) North Link Connections Mobility Project:  

• King County Metro has begun a restructuring process for north King County 

focused on coordinating service with the future three North Link light rail stations.  

• Metro release a public comment survey in January, with comments due in April. 

You can learn more about the project and share your comments here. 

• The UDP serves on the project’s Partner Review Board, a concept review team 

of external stakeholders and includes other representatives from major 

stakeholders in the project area and partner transit agencies.  

• In December, Stephen Antupit met with Metro to review their proposed network 

changes. Stephen emphasized the significance of layover and near-station 

routing impacts on existing businesses and planned developments. Stephen 

offered to use UDP’s network of contacts for Metro to begin developing 

information and sharing proposed plans with the numerous development projects 

near the station/ in the District.  

• In January, Katy Ricchiuto met with Metro representatives to view proposed route 

changes and advance a partnership conversation based on the conversation that 

Stephen initiated. 

• As a next step, Metro will present to the Urban Vitality Committee on February 

25. 

 

4) Public Realm 

a) Food Truck Permit on University Way:   

• In January, UDP was notified of a pending food truck permit for a loading zone 

space on University Way, near NE 43rd. This loading zone had recently been 

created by SDOT for businesses on 43rd affected by construction impacts along 

that street. 

• UDP and local businesses submitted public comment opposed to the food truck 

permit being issued for that space. We also reached out to our connections in 

several different departments at SDOT to notify them of the issues. 

• We have received notification that the food truck permit will be denied for the 

duration of the construction project, though future permit applications for those 

loading zones may be considered and approved. We will continue to monitor the 

permit applications and work with SDOT to make sure local business needs are 

met. 

b) District Mural Project: 

• We are researching the possibility of installing at least three murals across the U 

District over the next 8 months. This program is the beginning of a broader vision 

of activating areas of our district, including empty walls and alleys, to make them 

vibrant public spaces. 

https://kingcounty.gov/depts/transportation/metro/programs-projects/fares-routes-and-service/north-link-connections.aspx


• Katy Ricchiuto met with Urban Artworks, a local nonprofit that specialized in 

mural installations and youth art programs, to discuss their potential engagement 

in the mural program.  

• The Masonic Temple on University Way would like a mural installed on the alley 

side of their building. They can donate member hours and the project space. 

• Next steps include securing funding through sponsorship or grants, taking an 

inventory of potential mural spaces, determining supportive property owners, and 

finalizing partnerships with artists and/or art organizations.  

 

 


	UDP Board Agenda February 2020
	DRAFT UDP Board Mtg Minutes January 2020
	Balance Sheet 01-31-20 (1)
	Budget Report Jan 2020
	2019-20 BIA Budget Tracker January 2020
	Variance Notes - January DRAFT Close
	Clean and Safe Committee Update - Feb 2020
	Marketing and Events Report February-2020
	BoardReport-EconomicDevelopment-February2020-v2
	February 2020 Urban Vitality Board Report

